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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Thomas House is located on the northwest side of Maryland Route
304, approximately 1.8 miles northeast of Ruthsburg, in Queen Anne's
County, Maryland.

The Thomas House is distinguished by a stepped, two-part plan
designed to represent two separate building phases and to have the appear-
ance of a Federal townhouse with a lower, two-story wing. Based on
architectural and decorative elements supplemented by family and property
records, the house appears to have been built between 1798 and 1821.

SRS

The main or larger section of the two parts is two-storys high and
three bays wide. The lower north section is also of two storys and has
two bays, but its windows are of smaller dimensions and are positioned
lower than those of the main block. Four chimneys protrude from the
gable roof of the main block, two on each end. The northwest chimney
is the largest of the four and carries the flues for three fireplaces
in the lower, north portion of the house. The deep, semi-circular
arched entrance doorway is centered on the facade and opens into a hall-
way extending the full depth of the house. It has a molded pilastered
surround with paneled reveals and a traceried fanlight over a six-panel
door. The windows are of six-over-nine sash on the main block and six-
over-six sash on the lower part. All have flat arches of splayed stretcher
brick, wood sills, and once had exterior blinds. The roof cornice of
the main portion is decorated with carved modillion blocks and a dentiled
bedmolding and has gable returns. Apparently in an effort to make the
lower part appear later, or to accentuate the main block, its cornice
has only ogee crown and bedmoldings. Both parts of the house are of
brick construction, Flemish bond on the west (facade) and south (approach)
sides and common bond on the other two. The house stands on flush,
common bond foundation walls that enclose a full cellar beneath the
main block and a half-cellar beneath the lower section. The cellar rooms
are lighted by four windows on the west front and two windows on the
east side, all aligned with the windows above.

The south end of the Thomas House is two bays wide on the two main
floor levels and the attic. The north end shows an interesting combi-
nation of roof lines: that of the main block, the gable roof of the
one-room deep lower section, and , behind this, the lean-to roof of the
one-story kitchen. The kitchen, also part of the original plan, has,
in the past several years, suffered extensive deterioration. The roof
and north end wall have collapsed and the east side wall is bulged and
broken in several areas. Its reconstruction is planned by the present
owners as part of the restoration of the house. ‘

The entrance door on the west front, for which a brick stoop and
steps is planned, opens into a center stair hall (see plan). The stair
rises along the north wall from west to east at the rear of the hall and
has delicately turned posts, a molded rail and scrolled stepends. (At

see continuation sheet #1
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built between 1798 and 1821 by a long-established Eastern Shore
family, the Thomas House is a Federal brick dwelling whose style and size
are indicative of the economic security of its builders and the archi-
tectural taste of the time.

The first members of the Thomas family arrived in Maryland in the
last quarter of the seventeenth century. The family grew quite large on
the Eastern Shore, with branches in Talbot, Kent, and Queen Anne's
Counties.

__Thomas Thomas, of the third generation to be born in Maryland, was a
planter resident i1n Queen Anne's County. In 1755 he received a patented
certificate for part of a tract called "Winfield" containing 297.5 acres.
On this property were twelve cultivated acres, "one new framed Dwelling
house, 20 by 16 foott, one old Rotton Log house-one old milk house, 8 by
8 foott, Eight apple trees, Eleven Cherry trees, one peach tree, and 370
panels of old Rotton fence." Three years later, Thomas was granted
another certificate for 275 more acres of Winfield (the original patent
having been for 1000 acres). All of this land was apparently resurveyed
before 1769 when Thomas sold sixty-three acres of "Winfield Corrected" to

William Yoe.l

Thomas died in 1770, leaving several parts of "Winfield" and "Winfielc
resurveyed" to his sons. To James Thomas he devised his "dwelling plan-
tation . . . being part of a"tract . . . called Winfield and also all
that part of a tract . . . called Winfield resurveyed which stands on
the north side of the road that leads from Queens Town to Choptank Bridge
« « « «" His son Thomas received the part of the latter tract to the
south of the road which, since he was farming in Carolina, he sold to
his brother James, a planter in Queen Anne's County, in the following

year. 2

James Thomas died in 1807, leaving 125 acres of "Winfield" and
"Winfield Corrected" to his son..James. ‘The latter sold the property of
150 acres six years later to Dr. John Thomas. Dr. Thomas died before
1821 when his wife Elizabeth wrote a will in which she mentioned the
farable or cleared land purchased of James Thomas now deceased," which
was left to her son, John Baynard Thomas, by his father. John B. Thomas
acquired 106 acres more of "Winfield"-from the trustee of the real estate

see continuation sheet #2
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Description, continued

one time, probably about 1900, the stair area was separated from the
hall by a frame partition. The wall has since been removed). The
enframement of the front entrance has a molded, crosseted surround with
fluted strapwork and, framing the fanlight, imposts and a molded
keystone.

On the south side of the hall are two rooms of near equal size.
The southwest parlor has deep, full height reveals at the windows with
hidden blinds and under-window panels. There are also molded baseboards
and chairrails. The mantel has a blocked frieze, fluted dentils under
the cornice shelf, and roped moldings around the fireplace opening. The
southeast chamber is less elegantly treated and has only a dentiled
band on the mantel and, flanking the mantel on one side, a paneled full
height cupboard. In both rooms and the hall there are crosseted surrounds
framing the windows and doors. A door connecting the two parlors, however
is a circa 1900 introduction, and its surround is unornamented.

On the north side of the hall are two rooms. The northwest room,
originally the dining room and two steps lower than the hall, has a
paneled fireplace wall, an enclosed stair in the southeast corner, and
crosseted surrounds on the windows and doors. On the east side of this
room is the kitchen,one-story high and three steps lower than the
dining room. The kitchen has a large fireplace opening on its south
wall with a shallow closet on its east side. It appears that this
closet was once a doorway opening onto a short flight of steps down to
the cellar of the main block. The opening has been bricked over for
many yvears. There is a partially enclosed flight of steps to the cellar
in the southeast corner of the kitehen. The kitchen chimney base and
stack is built on the outside end of the main block and curves up along
the wall to project above the roof line near the gable peak.

On the second floor of the house there are three bedchambers, one
over each of the prinicpal first floor rooms. The head of the stair
hall is partitioned off to provide for a small fourth room. The wood-
work in these rooms is similar in profile to that of the first floor
but much simpler in its manner of execution. Two interesting features,
however, exist. One is the window lighting the stair landing between
the first and second floor levels. Its sill is "supported" by two
ogee-shaped brackets with drops. Another is the use of a paneled gate
and rail framing the stairwell in the northwest bedchamber.

continued
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Description, continued

The basement of the Thomas House has four rooms. That part of the
basement beneath the main block follows the same room configuration as
the first floor and has brick floors and recessed arches in the chimney
bases. The basement area beneath the first floor southeast room origi-
nally housed the winter kitchen and has an expansive fireplace opening.

Significance, continued

of Richard Legg in 1842. The dwelling now called the Thomas House is
mentioned in 1879 (and until at least 1967) as standing on the "Home
Farm of the late John B. Thomas," comprised of garts of "Hawkins
Pharsalia," "Thomas' Addition," and "Winfield."

The Thomas House is not on the Federal Direct Tax Assessment of
1798 for Queen Anne's County. The "Winfield" tracts are listed on the
assessment in Tuckahoe Hundred under the ownership of James Thomas and
a Dr. John Thomas. There is a house on each of their properties, but
both are 1 1/2-story frame bu.'ﬂdings.4 The Thomas House was thus built
after 1798, either by James Thomas, Sr., between 1798 and 1807; James
Thomas, Jr., between 1807 and 1813; or (Dr.) John Thomas, between 1813
and 1821.

The Thomases were typical members of Tidewater Maryland's eighteenth
and early nineteenth century society. All of the men mentioned above
were planters, with the possible exception of Dr. John Thomas, although
it is likely that he farmed also. James Thomas held four slaves according
to the 1790 federal census, which was about the average number for that
half of the population who owned slaves. Thomas' home, as described
in the 1798 tax assessment, was a framed dwelling with two brick chimneys,
34" X 18', with three windows, valued at $200. This was again an average
sized house for a person of his economic position, i.e., although by no
means wealthy, comfortable and better off than the majority of planters
at the time.

From this economic background came, with the economic stabilization
after the formation of the new nation, the means and desire to build a
dwelling such as the Thomas House. Quite a larger building than the
frame one of the eighteenth century, it is also constructed of the more
durable building material of brick. Its style is that of a‘Egdeggi\_AQ
townhouse popular in the towns and cities of that day, reflecting an

effort on the part of its builder to be fashionable.

continued
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Significance, continued

This latter fact may be one clue pointing to Dr. John Thomas as
the builder of the house. A well-known man in the county from the
third quarter of the eighteenth century, he owned several lots in
Centreville and may have desired to move to a country home whose style
would reflect his position.

John B. Thomas, mid-nineteenth century occupant of the house,

was also an active resident of Queen Anne's County. He was a trustee

of the county almshouse, an inspector of primary schools, a commissioner
for a railroad to be built from Queen Anne's to Cecil County, and a
commissioner for the organization of a bank in Centreville. He also
served several terms in the state legislature and was a member of the
county committee appointed to take charge in the secession crisis of
1861. The Thomas House property remained in his family until 1928.

lPatented Certificates 1167 and 1169, Queen Anne's County
Deed RT H/315.

2Queen Anne's County Will WHN 2/325.

3Queen Anne's County Wills WHN 4/315 and TCE 2/61 and Queen
Anne's County Deeds JB 2/144, JT 2/369, JT 2/371, JT 2/372, JT 3/500,
JW 9/212, JEG 2/434, BHT 8/391, TSP 70/62, and CWC 28/446.

4Federal Direct Tax Assessment for 1798, Tuckahoe Hundred,
Queen Anne's County, Maryland.

5Frederic Emory, Queen Anne's County, Maryland, . . . (Reprint
of 1886 ed.; Baltimore, Maryland: Maryland Historical Society, 1950).

Bibliographical References, continued
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ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

The Thomas House is a substantial house of the Federal
period, solidly and well built. It has what is essentially
a four-square plan in a form that successfully combines a
townhouse with rural vernacular forms. The woodwork on
both exterior and interior is of good quality, finely
executed. The exterior cornice work is particularly good
and largely intact. The interior woodwork is about 95%
intact, the mantels, paneled recesses, and stair being
among the finer details. A unigue feature in the dining
room chamber is a waist-high door in front of the enclosed
stair; this has not been found in any other Eastern Shore
building to date.

Two barns also stand on this property. One is of

early 19th century date of hewn frame, the other is a shed
of later date. Both are in poor repair.
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